


SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MEETING 
COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE  
Board of Supervisors’ Meeting Room 

J. S. Clark Administration Bldg. 2nd Floor 
Baton Rouge, LA.  
December 10, 2021 

1:00 p.m. 
 

AGENDA 
1. Call to Order 

  
2. Invocation 

 
3. Pledge of Allegiance   

 
4. Roll Call 

 
5. Adoption of the Agenda   

 
6. Public Comments 

 
7. Action Items 

 
A. Approval of Minutes of the November 26, 2021 SUS Board of Supervisors Meeting 

 
B. Request Approval for Internal Audit Items (SUS) 

 
1. Charter for the Internal Audit Department 

2. Audit Schedule   

3. Internal Audit Quality Improvement Plan 

C. Request Approval for Memorandum of Understanding between Southern University at Baton 
Rouge and Southern University Ag Center and Terra Vega, Inc. (SUBR/SUAREC) 
 

D. Request Approval of Cooperative Endeavor Agreement Between the Southern University Law 
Center, the Louisiana Housing Cooperation, and the Office of Community Development (SULC) 
 

E. Request Approval to Utilize Prior Year Funds for Student Transit (SUBR) 
 

F. Request Approval of Head Football Coach Contract (SUBR) 
 

G. One-Year Salary Adjustment for Additional Duties Assigned through the Housing Eviction and 
Diversion Project Funded by the LCH and DOA Grant (SULC) 

Name Position/Campus Salary Funding Source 
1. Marla Dickerson Project Director 

Additional Duties 
(SULC) 

$151,000.00 State 

2. Alycia Grace-O’Bear Project Manager 
Additional Duties 

(SULC) 

$109,900.00 State 



 
H. Request Approval of Personnel Action on Positions equal to or greater than $60,000 

 
I. Clarification of Personnel Action for Charles Rice, SULC Program Manager and Consultant 

($119,700.00) 
 

J. Clarification of Personnel Action for Samantha Thompson, SULC Analyst for Institutional 
Effectiveness (72,000.00) 

 

3. Keegel Henderson Administrative 
Additional Duties 

(SULC) 

$61,000.00 State 

4. Jasmine Hunter Public Relations 
Additional Duties 

(SULC) 

$85,000.00 State 

5. Gloria Jones Administrative 
Additional Duties 

(SULC) 

$61,000.00 State 

6. Paula Matthews Administrative 
Additional Duties 

(SULC) 

$91,000.00 State 

7. Alvin Washington Attorney 
Additional Duties 

(SULC) 

$119,800.00 State 

Name Position/Campus Salary Funding Source 
1. Krystle Allen Assistant Specialist/Program Leader (CED) 

Salary Adjustment 
(SUAREC) 

$68,000.00 Federal 

2. Zanetta Augustine Assistant Specialist/Program Leader (ANR) 
Salary Adjustment 

(SUAREC) 

$70,000.00 Federal 

3. Tambria Bradford Associate Director of Academics 
New Appointment 

(SUBR) 

$65,000.00 State/NCAA Grant 

4. Phillippe Carter Director of Athletic Compliance 
New Appointment 

(SUBR) 

$75,000.00 State 

5. Ajeanne Dillon Director of Student  
Athlete Academic Services 

Additional Duties 
(SUBR) 

$68,165.00 NCAA Grant 

6. Allison Ezidore-Tassin Graphic Artist and Web Content Specialist 
Salary Adjustment 

(SUAREC) 

$60,000.00 Federal 

7. Marlin Hollins Director of Development 
New Appointment 

(SUBR) 

$75,000.00 State 

8. Tamika Porter Program Manager 
Salary Adjustment 

(SUAREC) 

$65,000.00 Federal 

9. Jeremiah Sams Associate General Counsel for Procurement, 
Contracts, Leases and Public Records 

New Appointment 
(SUS) 

$80,000.00 State 



 
8.  Informational Item(s) 

 
A. President’s Report 

B. Chancellor’s Reports  

9.  Other Business 
 
10. Adjournment 
 



1 | P a g e  Board of Supervisors Meeting Minutes November 26, 2021 
 
 

SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MEETING 
COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE  

Hyatt Regency Hotel 
601 Loyola Ave. | New Orleans, La 70113 

Friday, November 26, 2021 
9:00 a.m. 

 
Minutes 

 
The meeting of the Southern University Board of Supervisors was called to order by 
Board Chair Atty. Domoine Rutledge. The invocation was given by Dr. C. S. Gordon, 
Pastor of New Zion Baptist Church in New Orleans, LA.  Pledge of Allegiance was led 
by Board Member Jody Amedee. 
 
AGENDA ITEM 3: ROLL CALL 

  
PRESENT 
Atty. Domoine Rutledge, M r .  J o d y ,  A m e d e e ,  Mr. John Barthelemy, Dr .  Leroy  Da vi s ,  
Mr .  Ra ym ond Fondel ,  Mr. Sam Gilliam, Mr. Richard Hilliard, Mr. Myron Lawson, Ms. 
Christy Reeves, Atty Edwin Shorty, Mrs.  Ann A. Smith, Dr. Leon R. Tarver II, Mr. Kevin Taylor-
Jarrell II, Rev. Samuel Tolbert, Dr. Rani Whitified, and Ms. Arlanda Williams, 

 
 ABSENT                                                                                                                                       
NONE 
 

AGENDA ITEM 5: ELECTION FO BOARD OFFICERS FOR 2022 
 
 A. Chairman – Nominations for Chairman was opened.  Dr.  Leon Tarver 
nominated Atty Edwin Shorty.  There were no additional  nominations.  The 
nominations were closed, and a motion was made by Ms. Arlanda Williams and 
second by Ms Christy Reeves for Atty Edwin Shorty as Chairman.    
 
Motion Approved.   
 
 B.  Vice Chairman - Nominations for Vice Chairman was opened.  Mr. Sam 
Gilliam nominated Dr. Rani Whitfield.   There were no additional nominations.  
The nominations were closed, and a motion was made by Mr. Myron Lawson and 
second by Ms. Arlanda Will iams for Dr. Rani Whitfield as Vice Chairman.   
 
Motion Approved.   
 
Chairman Rutledge congratulated both Atty Shorty and Dr. Whitfield.  They both 
gave brief comments and thanked everyone for their support, and they are looking 
forward to the new year.    



2 | P a g e  Board of Supervisors Meeting Minutes November 26, 2021 
 
 
  
AGENDA ITEM 6: ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 
 
Chairman Rutledge mentioned the agenda will be amended.  Action Item 10(L-10) Derrick 
Warren Salary should be $150,256.00.  Upon the motion by Dr. Rani Whitfield and second 
by Mrs. Christy Reeves, the agenda was recommended for adoption with amendment. 

 
Motion passed. 

 
AGENDA ITEM 7: PUBLIC COMMENTS  
None 
 
AGENDA ITEM 8: GREETINGS FROM DR. RICK GALLOT, PRESIDENT OF 
GRAMBLING STATE UNIVERSITY  
 
Dr. Gallot thanked Dr. Belton and the Board of Supervisors for the invite.  He mentioned he was 
accompanied by members of his leadership team.  He asked them to stand to be recognized.  Dr. Belton 
and Chairman Rutledge thanked Dr. Gallot for attending the meeting.  Dr. Belton gave a few comments.   
 
AGENDA ITEM 9: SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS 

 
A. Above and Beyond Award  

Dr. James Ammons introduced Dr. Adriel Hilton who presented the above and beyond award 
to Mr. Jamaal K. Williams.  He is the administrative assistant to the Vice Chancellor for 
Student Affairs and Enrollment Management at SUNO.   Mr. Williams thanked SUNO and 
the Board of Supervisors for the award.   
 

B. SHE-CAN (McBride Sisters) Check Presentation to the Southern University Agricultural 
Research and Extension Center and the College of Agricultural, Family and Consumer 
Sciences (SUAREC) 
Dr. McMeans introduced Dr. Renita Marshall who introduced the SU Alum Agnes who is 
CEO for McBride Sisters.   
She gave brief background about the McBride Sisters and all the support to the black owned 
women businesses.  She mentioned how they plan to support SU Ag and presented a check in 
the amount of $50k.   
 

C. Diageo Learning Skills for Life and Entrepreneurship Partnership with SULC and SUSLA 
(SULC and SUSLA) 
Chancellor Pierre introduced Ms Monica Hawkins who presented a check in the amount of 
$200k.  

 
D. Sons and Daughters Special Visionary Award (SUS) 

Award was presented to Board Member Raymond Fondel.   
 
E. STRADA Education Network Presentation to Southern University at New Orleans (SUNO) 

Dr. Ammons introduced Dr. Kim Rugon who presented checks for Items 9E – 9G 
 
F. Sarah Conn Presentation to Southern University at New Orleans (SUNO) 

Check amount $25k 



3 | P a g e  Board of Supervisors Meeting Minutes November 26, 2021 
 
 

G. CMC Contractors Presentation to Southern University at New Orleans (SUNO) 
Check amount $10k 

 
 

AGENDA ITEM 10: ACTION ITEMS 
   
Motion was made by Dr. Rani Whitfield and second by Mr. John Barthelemy that Action Item 
10A be approved  
 
Motion was approved. 
 

 
A. Approval of Minutes of the October 22, 2021, SUS Board of Supervisors Meeting 

 
Motion was made by Ms. Christy Reeves and second by Mr. John Barthelemy to approve Action 
Item 10B and 10C in global.  
 
Motion was approved. 

 
 

B. Request Approval of SUBR Facilities Master Plan (SUBR)  
 

C. Southern University System Strategic Plan 2020-2021 Accountability Scorecard – 
(Informational Item) (SUS) 
 

Motion was made by Mr. John Barthelemy and second by Mrs. Christy Reeves to approve Action 
Items 10D and 10L in global.  
 
Motion Approved. 

 
D. Ratification for the Reduction in Housing Rate for the Spring 2021 Semester (SUBR) 

 
E. Request Approval of MOU Between the Institute for Law Reform (ILR) and the Southern 

University Law Center and Scholarship Grant donation from the US Chamber of 
Commerce Foundation (SULC) 

 
F. Request Approval of Certification of SUBR Candidates for Graduation (Fall 2021) 

 
G. Request Approval of the Dinisa Hardley Folmar Impact Endowed Scholarship and 

Scholarship Presentation (SULC) 
 

H. Request Approval of Retirement Incentive Plan for Tenured Faculty and Unclassified 
Employees (SUNO) 
 

I. Request Approval of Graduate Placement Student Policy (SUS) 
 

J. Request Approval of Honorary Doctorate of Humane Letters for Irving Matthews 
(SUBR) 

 



4 | P a g e  Board of Supervisors Meeting Minutes November 26, 2021 
 
 

K. Request Approval of SUSLA Assignment and Interim Appointment of Chancellor of 
Southern University at Shreveport (SUSLA) 

L. Request Approval of Personnel Action on Positions equal to or greater than $60,000 
 

M. Request Approval of Sabbatical Leave for Dr. Yaser Banadaki (SUBR) 
 
Motion was made by Mr. John Barthelemy and second by Dr. Rani Whitfield that Action Item 10M 
be approved  

 
Motion was approved. 

 
 

Name Position/Campus Salary Funding Source 
1. Wayne Bryant Director of Human Resources  

and Professional Development 
Title Change and Additional Duties 

(SUSLA) 

$75,225.28 State 

2. Harry Doughty Chancellor’s Executive Associate/ 
Senior Athletic Administrator 

Additional Duties 
(SUNO) 

$90,340.00 State 

3. Joseph LaCour, Jr. Director of Facilities and Risk Management 
New Position 

(SUSLA) 

$65,000.00 State 

4. James Matthews, III Athletic Director/ Head Men’s Basketball 
Coach 

New Position 
(SUNO) 

$75,000.00 State 

5. Lee Melancon Senior Program Manager / Special Asst. to the 
Exec Director - Facilities  

New Position 
(SUBR) 

$72,000.00 State 

6. Charles Rice Program Manager and Consultant 
Additional Duties 

(SULC) 

$74,700.00 State 

7. Theresa Rogers Comptroller 
New Position 

(SUBR) 

$95,000.00 State 

8. Kelly Smith Assistant Professor Nursing 
New Position 

(SUNO) 

$75,000.00 State 

9. Samantha Thompson Analyst for Institutional 
Effectiveness and Accreditation 

Additional Duties 
(SULC) 

$74,700.00 State 

10. Derrick Warren Associate Dean/ MBA Director 
New Position 

(SUBR) 

$139,256.00 
$150,256.00 

State 

11. Florence Regine 
Williams 

Director of Information and PR/ 
Sports Information Director 

Additional Duties 
(SUNO) 

$64,000.00 State 



5 | P a g e  Board of Supervisors Meeting Minutes November 26, 2021 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM 12:  RESOLUTIONS 
 
 
Dr. Katara Williams, Chief of Staff read resolutions and commendations for November for the following: 

• Dr. James Fortenberry  
• Mr. Freddie “Juman” Smith 

 
Upon Motion from Ms. Ann Smith to approve the read resolutions and additions and Ms. Christy Reeves 
second the motion.   
 
Motion approved 
 
AGENDA ITEM 13:  INFORMATIONAL ITEM(S) 
 

 
A. Southern University Semester-in-Shreveport Update (SULC) 

Chancellor Pierre introduced Professor Deleso Alford who gave a high level update. 

B. Medical Marijuana Update 

Brief update provided by Dr. Janna Snowden.  She mentioned the new product which is now 
available. 
Chairman Rutledge asked when the Valera contract was up for renewal?   Dr. Snowden 
mentioned, “2023 is the year for renewal.” 

 

C. Facilities and Property Update 

Mr. Maurice Pitts gave a Facilities and Property Update for each campus.  Mr. Pitts answered some 

questions from Dr. Tarver and Ms. Ann Smith.   

D. Interim Financial Reports 

Mr. McClinton gave a summary for each campus. The detail information is in the packet.   
 

E. President’s Report 

Dr. Belton gave a brief report.  He thanked Chairman Rutledge for his leadership and 
congratulated the new leadership.   
 

F. Chancellor’s Reports  

All chancellor’s gave brief report.  (Detail report is in the board packet) 

Dr. Ammons presented brief report on behalf of SUNO. 
Dr. Appeaning presented brief report on behalf of SUSLA. 



6 | P a g e  Board of Supervisors Meeting Minutes November 26, 2021 
 
 

Dr. McMeans presented brief report on behalf of SUAREC. 
Chancellor Pierre presented brief report on behalf of SULC. 
Dr. Sahoo presented brief report on behalf of SUBR 
 
Each chancellor thanked Chairman Rutledge for his leadership and congratulated the new 
chairman and vice chairman. 

 
 

AGENDA ITEM 14:  OTHER BUSINESS 
 
Dr. Rani Whitfield and Chairman Rutledge acknowledged the athletic department on the Baton Rouge 
campus and AD Roman Banks for being in full compliance with NCAA.   
Chairman Atty Domoine Rutledge acknowledged elected officials, other dignitaries and alums who were 
in attendance for the meeting.  He thanked everyone who come to meetings regularly.  
 
 

 
AGENDA ITEM 15:  ADJOURNMENT 
 
Motion was made by Rev. Samuel Tolbert to adjourn the meeting.   
 





















































1 
 

 
A COOPERATIVE ENDEAVOR AGREEMENT  

 

This Cooperative Endeavor Agreement is entered into by and between:  

THE LOUISIANA HOUSING CORPORATION, a public body corporation 
and politic constituting an instrumentality of the State of Louisiana represented 
by its Interim Executive Director, Bradley R. Sweazy, its duly authorized agent 
(hereinafter, “LHC”); 
 
THE SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY LAW CENTER, a public law school 
domiciled in East Baton Rouge Parish, Louisiana, represented herein by John 
Pierre, its Chancellor, (hereafter referred to as “SULC”); and  
 
THE OFFICE OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT, part of the Division of 
Administration, leading the state’s disaster recovery and long-term community 
resilience planning efforts with a great sense of urgency through innovation, 
partnerships and best practices, represented herein by Assistant Commissioner 
Desiree Honore (hereafter referred to as “DOA”). 
 

LHC, SULC, and DOA shall be hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Parties”  who declare 
and agree as follows: 

 
WHEREAS, Article VII, Section 14(C) of the 1974 Constitution of the State of Louisiana 

and LSA-R.S. 33:1324, et seq. provide that, for a public purpose, public entities, parishes, 
municipalities and political subdivisions may engage in and make cooperative endeavor 
agreements/intergovernmental agreements between themselves for specific purposes;  

 
WHEREAS, LHC is an instrumentality of the State of Louisiana whose mission is to 

ensure that every Louisiana resident is granted an opportunity to obtain safe, affordable, energy-
efficient housing; and  

 
WHEREAS, housing instability, shortage of affordable and available rental housing, 

distressed economy and communities, and increase in the number of extremely low income and 
uninformed renters are the chief causes for the major surge in evictions and foreclosures;  

 
WHEREAS, heirship, abandoned, and adjudicated properties are a major impediment to 

the current and future economic development of both rural and urban neighborhoods in the State 
of Louisiana;  

 
WHEREAS, SULC is an institution of higher education governed by the Board of 

Supervisors of Southern University and Agricultural and Mechanical College pursuant to the 
authority granted under the Louisiana Constitution Article 8, §7; whose primary mission is the 
preparation of law students for practice in the legal profession;  

 



2 
 

WHEREAS, LHC desires to cooperate with SULC and agrees the obligations and terms 
of this Agreement will further the purposes of LHC and SULC; 

 
WHEREAS, LHC and SULC desire to engage SULC students in endeavors that advance 

their educational pursuits through the remediation of legal issues that 1) create housing instability 
and increases housing loss (evictions and foreclosures), or that hinder heirship, resulting in 
abandoned, and adjudicated properties for low-income communities and/or those negatively 
impacted by economic stressors; 2) negotiate overhead costs on a project by project basis; and 3) 
develop planning and legal skills in law students by providing educational opportunities for 
supervised student representation in consumer and legal protections, education and outreach in 
both rural and urban communities of the State of Louisiana. 

 
WHEREAS, the Parties have also determined that it is necessary to address the access to 

and handling of data electronically acquired by SULC from the LHC and data electronically 
transmitted from SULC to LHC; and 

 
WHEREAS, the actions and services required of the LHC, SULC, and DOA pursuant to 

this Agreement will result in a public benefit to citizens of the State of Louisiana described herein.  
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants herein contained, the 
mutual benefits to be derived here from, the public purpose and public benefit, and the adequacy 
of which is hereby acknowledged, the Parties hereto each agree, contract, and covenant as follows: 
 
 

SCOPE OF AGREEMENT  
 

 The term of this Agreement shall commence upon the signature of all parties to the 
Agreement, and the term period shall be from execution of this agreement until May 31, 2022. At 
the option of LHC and SULC, this Agreement may be extended on the same terms and conditions 
as the original Agreement, or upon such terms and conditions as the parties agree, for three (3) 
additional one-year periods. 
 

1. OBLIGATION OF THE PARTIES:  LHC and SULC shall agree to collaborate on 
planning, research, and implementation of project that reduce home instability and 
evictions, through eviction diversion and counseling, as well as bring eviction back into 
commerce (“Projects”). These Projects will: 

 
A. Educate through the preparation and distribution of informative materials 

related to the problems associated with leases and evictions.  
B. Educate through the preparation and distribution of informative materials 

through outreach and other mass media related to evictions, extremely low-
income renters, and other issues associated with affordable and available 
housing, and overall housing insecurity. 

C. Facilitate the mentorship of law students through internships with LHC.  
 



3 
 

2.  PLAN ADMINISTRATION: Plan, grant, and fiscal administration shall be handled 
by LHC and SULC respectively, with each entity responsible for following its own internal 
procedures, while cooperating with one another to streamline costs and maximize efficiencies. 
Upon execution of this Agreement, representatives from each party shall work collectively to 
develop one or more projects to accomplish one or more of the above stated goals. Each program 
shall be created with the goals and milestones necessary to ensure proper compliance with all grant 
funding opportunities or other statutory or regulatory requirements, as well as to create a 
framework for evaluating the effectiveness of each program. Reports shall be provided to both 
SULC and LHC for analysis and review and shall be in a format sufficient to share with key 
stakeholders. 

 
3. INDEMNIFICATION:  To the extent allowed under any policy of liability insurance 

and to the fullest extent permitted by law, SULC shall indemnify and hold harmless the LHC, its 
respective officials, employees, insurers and agents from and against any claims, liabilities, 
injuries, damages and costs (including reasonable attorney’s fees and costs of defense) arising out 
the actions of SULC its officials, employees and agents undertaken pursuant to this Agreement.  

 
To the extent allowed under any policy of liability insurance and to the fullest extent 

permitted by law, the LHC shall indemnify and hold harmless SULC, its respective officials, 
employees, insurers and agents from and against any claims, liabilities, injuries, damages and costs 
(including reasonable attorney’s fees and costs of defense) arising out the actions of the LHC, its 
officials, employees and agents undertaken pursuant to this Agreement.  

 
4.  COMPENSATION AND MAXIMUM AGREEMENT AMOUNT:  In consideration 

of the services required under this Agreement, LHC hereby agrees to pay SULC a maximum fee 
not to exceed two hundred ten thousand dollars ($210,000.00).  

 
LHC will pay to SULC the funds available under this Agreement based upon information 

submitted by SULC and consistent with the budget for the Project, as approved by the Office of 
Community Development and attached hereto as Exhibit A, entitled “Proposed Budget for 
Eviction Diversion Programs Between Louisiana Housing Corporation and Southern University 
Law Center”, and incorporated herein by reference and for all other purposes. Payments will be 
made for eligible expenses on a cost reimbursement basis for actual costs incurred in accordance 
with the aforementioned budget. 

 
Prohibitions. 
 

1. Prohibition Against Advance Payments. No compensation or payment of any 
nature will be made in advance of services performed and/or deliverables 
furnished. 

 
2. Funds cannot be used to substitute funding for personnel already on staff nor can 

it be used to hire staff not working specifically on this Project or to pay for 
additional administrative costs.  

 
Project Cost Exceeding the Total Agreement Amount. 



4 
 

 
If SULC determines that the price and cost of the Project which is designed in 
connection with the Agreement will exceed the amount allocated for this Project, 
then LHC will be given notice of this projected cost overrun and shall be given an 
opportunity to agree to pay these additional cost overruns. If LHC does not elect to 
pay this cost overrun, the Project will be reduced or revised to a price and cost in 
compliance with the amount granted for the Project. In no case shall the LHC be 
liable or responsible for any cost overrun more than the funds allotted for this 
project. 

 
5. TERM OF AGREEMENT:  This Agreement shall be effective beginning the  November 1, 

2021 and shall terminate on May 31,2022 unless otherwise extended by the parties through the execution 
of an amendment to this Agreement.  

 
6.  TERMINATION: Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary, either 

LHC or SULC may terminate this Agreement at any time by giving ninety (90) days prior written 
notice to the other party.  Upon termination by either party, any materials related to particular 
properties held by the LHC or its affiliates shall be returned to the LHC.  

 
7.  STORAGE AND DISTRIBUTION OF MATERIALS: LHC and SULC, and/or other 

assignees shall serve as archival repositories for information gathered through these projects as 
agreed by the participating parties.  Materials related to property owned or controlled by the LHC 
shall be considered the property of the LHC, regardless of where or how such information is stored.  
No materials shall be distributed to parties not subject to this Agreement without the express 
written consent of each party hereto.  The parties agree to mark confidential or proprietary 
information clearly to avoid distribution of such materials. 

 
8.  MAINTENANCE OF RECORDS: LHC and SULC and/or other assignees, upon 

agreement of all parties, shall maintain and keep the necessary financial records and other 
documentation pertaining to costs associated with the aforementioned projects in accordance with 
all federal and state regulations and laws, and in compliance with the bookkeeping and accounting 
policies of the parties. Such records shall be safeguarded and treated as confidential and shall not 
be distributed to any party not subject to this Agreement without express written consent from all 
parties. 

 
9. ASSIGNMENT: No party to this Agreement shall assign any interest in this 

Agreement by assignment, transfer, or novation, without prior written consent of the other party. 
 
10.  APPROVAL OF ADDITIONAL PARTIES: Upon express written consent of each 

party, other parties may enter into this Agreement by executing an instrument where such 
additional party agrees and obligates itself to be bound hereby. Other parties may include entities 
other than municipalities and educational institutions. 

 
11.  AMENDMENTS:  Upon agreement of the parties, individual provisions of this 

Agreement may be deleted, modified, or amended as required to meet changing conditions. 
 



5 
 

12. NOTICE:  All notices and other communications pertaining to this CEA shall be 
made in writing and shall be transmitted either by personal hand delivery and receipted for or shall 
be deposited in the United States Mail, as certified mail, return receipt requested and postage 
prepaid, to the other party, addressed as follows:  

 
TO THE LHC:      
 
Louisiana Housing Corporation     
2415 Quail Drive       
Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70808  
 
TO SULC 
 
Chancellor John Pierre 
Southern University Law Center 
2 Roosevelt Steptoe Dr.  
Baton Rouge, LA 70813 
 
 
12. DISCRIMINATION CLAUSE: LHC and SULC agree to abide by the  

requirements of  the following as applicable: The contractor agrees to abide by the requirements 
of the following as applicable: Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and Title VII of the Civil 
Rights Act of 1964, as amended by the Equal Employment Opportunity Act of 1972, Federal 
Executive Order 11246 as amended, the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended, the Vietnam Era 
Veteran's Readjustment Assistance Act of 1974, Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, 
the Age Discrimination Act of 1975, the Fair Housing Act of 1968 as amended, and contractor 
agrees to abide by the requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990. 
 
 Parties agree not to discriminate in its employment practices and will render services under 
this contract without regard to race, color, religion, sex, national origin, veteran status, political 
affiliation, disabilities.  Any act of discrimination committed by Parties, or failure to comply with 
these statutory obligations will result in termination of the Agreement.  
 

13. NON-ASSIGNABILITY 
 
No Party to this CEA shall assign any interest or duty to any third party without the prior 

written consent of the other. 
 
14. PRIVACY: Any records, data, or information regarding students provided by SULC 

to the LHC will be subject to and protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act 
(FERPA).  

 
A. Maintenance of Privacy and Security. LHC and SULC hereby agree to maintain the 

privacy and security of all Program applicants’ confidential data within the restraints of the 
COVID-19 Emergency Rental Assistance and Housing Stability Programs. Security 
breaches of any type involving shared data shall be reported to the other party as soon as 



6 
 

possible.  Security breaches may include, but are not limited to, lost or stolen storage media 
containing shared data and unauthorized access to or distribution of the shared data. 

 
1. The Parties recognize and agree that data collected and shared under this CEA is 

generally confidential and shall not be released to the general public or other entities 
not a part of this CEA. 

 
2. The Parties and their agents, including staff members, contractors and any third 

party providers with access to the shared information will be obligated to follow 
confidentiality regulations imposed by this Agreement.  Any and all contracts and 
other procurement agreements relating to this data sharing protocol shall explicitly 
note this obligation. 

 
3. All the data sharing confidentiality requirements will include explicit limitations on 

searching for and viewing homeowner information on a need-to-know basis 
directly related to service delivery for that particular homeowner.  The Parties and 
their agents will take reasonable precautions to maintain the security and 
confidentiality of shared data at all times. 

 
B. Frequency of Delivery 

 
SULC will provide the LHC with the data described above, at minimum, on a monthly 
basis.  Data should be provided to LHC in a secured transmission and responded to in 
the format as sent by LHC.  Urgent data requests can be made as needed and should be 
responded to as soon as possible within two (2) working days of the request. 
 
15. ENTIRE AGREEMENT: This Agreement shall constitute the entire agreement 

between the parties and shall be effective as of the date that this Agreement is fully executed; all 
prior agreements between the parties, whether written or oral, are merged into this Agreement and 
shall have no force and effect with regard to this Agreement. 

 
16.  SURVIVAL: All obligations to be performed after the term of this Agreement 

shall survive this Agreement. 
 
17. SEVERABILITY:  The invalidity or unenforceability of any provisions of this 

Agreement shall not affect the validity or enforceability of any other provision of this Agreement, 
which shall remain in full force and effect. 

 
This agreement will become effective upon the approval of the Southern University System 

Board of Supervisors and upon execution by the LHC and DOA. 

 
THUS, DONE AND SIGNED, this_____ day of October 2021. 

 



7 
 

BY: ______________________________________  BY:  ______________________________ 
       John K. Pierre                                                                Bradley R. Sweazy 
       Chancellor, Executive Director,  
       Southern University Law Center Louisiana Housing Corporation  
 
 
 
 
BY: ______________________________________   

Desiree Honore 
Assistant Commissioner  
Division of Administration  















EMPLOYMENT CONTRACT OF FOOTBALL’S HEAD COACH 
ERIC DOOLEY  

This agreement is made and entered into on the ___ day of December, 2021 between 
Southern University at Baton Rouge (“SUBR”), through its management board, the Southern 
University Board of Supervisors (“Board”) and Eric Dooley (“Head Football Coach”). This 
agreement constitutes the employment contract and appointment of the Head Football Coach at 
Southern University in Baton Rouge, Louisiana. This agreement shall be effective on January 1, 
2022 and shall remain in effect through December 31, 2025. 
 
I. Employment 
   

a. Board does hereby employ Head Football Coach as the head football coach, and 
Head Football Coach does hereby accept employment and agrees to perform all of 
the services pertaining to football program that are required of Head Football Coach 
as well as other services as may be contemplated hereunder. All appointments are 
subject to applicable polices and regulations of the Board, and all employees are 
required to adhere to Board and/or administrative policies as they relate to them. 

 
b. Head Football Coach shall be responsible to, and shall report, directly to SUBR’s 

Athletic Director. 
 

c. Head Football Coach shall supervise and manage the football team and shall 
perform such other duties in SUBR’s athletics department as the Athletic Director 
and/or President-Chancellor may assign, provided such other services are 
consistent with the services and duties of a NCAA Division I Head Football Coach. 
 

d. Head Football Coach agrees to represent Southern University System positively in 
public and private forums and shall perform his duties and personally handle 
himself in a manner consistent with good sportsmanship and in accordance with 
high moral, ethical and academic standards of the Southern University System and 
its athletic programs. 

 
II. Term 

 
a. The term of this agreement is for four (4) years commencing on January 1, 2022, 

and terminating on December 31, 2025. The Board shall have the option to extend 
this agreement for one (1) additional year (i.e., through 2026).  

 
b. All options to extend and/or renew this agreement must be approved by the Board 

based upon the recommendation of the Director of Athletics and SUBR Chancellor.  
Head Football Coach shall have the option to accept/reject such an 
extension/renewal. Such extensions/renewals shall be in writing and signed by both 
parties. 

 
III. Compensation and Employment Benefits 

 



Head Football Coach Employment Contract 
Eric Dooley 

Page 2 

a. For services and satisfactory performance of all terms of this agreement, SUBR 
shall pay Head Football Coach an annual base salary of three hundred ten thousand 
dollars ($310,000.00).  The salary shall be paid in equal amounts monthly or such 
other regular pay periods used for administrative employees. 

   
b. SUBR will provide Head Football Coach the opportunity to participate in the 

benefit plans for health insurance, dental insurance, retirement, disability, and life 
insurance, subject to eligibility requirements, normally provided by SUBR to its 
regular non-academic unclassified full-time employees. 

 
IV. Outside Income - Subject to Compliance with Board Rules 

 
a. Head Football Coach shall be permitted to earn other revenue while employed by 

SUBR with the understanding that 1) SUBR-sponsored media events and/or 
obligations are primary and 2) such activities are independent of his SUBR 
employment and SUBR shall have no responsibility for any claims arising 
therefrom. All outside income opportunities will be subject to approval of the 
Athletic Director and handled in accordance with the Board’s policies. 

 
b. Head Football Coach shall report annually in writing to the Athletic Director and 

President-Chancellor all income received from athletically related sources outside 
of SUBR including but not limited to income from sports camps, housing benefits, 
television and radio programs, endorsement or consultation contracts with athletic 
shoe, apparel or equipment manufacturers or sellers, and SUBR shall have 
reasonable access to records of Head Football Coach to verify this report. 

 
V. Performance Incentives 
 

a. As an incentive for exemplary performance and in acknowledgement of the 
additional work that is required during the season, post-season games and events, 
SUBR agrees to pay the following performance incentives subject to the limitations 
contained within subsections V(b) and (c) herein.    

 
i. SWAC West Division Champion 

Head Coach       $10,000.00 
Full Time Assistant Coach     $  1,500.00  
Part Time Assistant Coach     $     750.00 
 

ii. Undefeated SWAC Western Division Champions 
1. Head Football Coach     $10,000.00 
2. Full-Time Assistant Coaches    $  1,500.00 
3. Part-Time Assistant Coaches    $     750.00 

 
iii. SWAC Overall Champion 

1. Head Football Coach     $20,000.00 
2. Full-Time Assistant Coaches    $  2,500.00 



Head Football Coach Employment Contract 
Eric Dooley 

Page 3 

3. Part-Time Assistant Coaches    $  1,000.00 
 

iv.      Undefeated SWAC Overall Champion 
1. Head Football Coach     $20,000.00 
2. Full-Time Assistant Coaches    $  2,500.00 
3. Part-Time Assistant Coaches    $  1,000.00 

 
v.      Defeats an FBS Opponent 

1. Head Football Coach     $10,000.00 
2. Full-Time Assistant Coaches    $  1,500.00 
3. Part-Time Assistant Coaches    $     750.00 

 
vi.      Bayou Classic Victory 

1. Head Football Coach     $10,000.00 
2. Full-Time Assistant Coaches    $  2,500.00 
3. Part-Time Assistant Coaches    $  1,000.00 

 
vii. National Coach of the Year1  

1. Head Football Coach     $12,500.00  
(maximum per year) 

 
viii. Net University Season Tickets Sales above $750,000.00/ 

$1,000,000.002 
1. Head Football Coach    $5,000.00/$10,000.00 
2. Full-Time Assistant Coaches   $  1,500.00/$2,000.00 
3. Part-Time Assistant Coaches   $     750.00/$1,000.00 

 
ix. HBCU/Celebration Bowl Appearance/Victory 

1. Head Football Coach (Appearance)   $25,000.00 
2. Head Football Coach (Victory)   $50,000.00 
3. Full-Time Assistant Coaches    $15,000.003 

 
x. APR Incentive 

1. Head Football Coach     $10,000.00 
The University will pay Head Football Coach for maintaining a single year 
APR score at or above 950, or any comparable academic benchmark used 
by the NCAA in place of APR in the future (the “APR Incentive”). It will 

                                                           
1 as determined by Sheridan Poll of Historically Black Colleges and Universities and/or ESPN/USA Division 1 
Football Championship Subdivision Poll, or, LSWA, SWAC Coach of the Year, or Regional Coach of the Year 
Award. 
2 The calculation for net University ticket sales above $750k/$1.0M shall be gross season book sales plus University 
home game gates sales, less expenses to Ticket Master, Inc., less expenses to reduce athletic department debt.  This 
calculation shall not include any ticket sales from Bayou Classic, Atlanta Classic or any University game played on 
neutral setting. Calculation is determined once per season.    
3 Head Football Coach has the discretion to divide the incentive amount among Full-Time Assistants in accordance 
with NCAA Bylaw 11.7.5 FCS and with approval from the Athletic Director. 



Head Football Coach Employment Contract 
Eric Dooley 

Page 4 

be determined each contract year based on the APR issued for the Program 
in June following the year, beginning with the APR issued in June 2022.  

 
xi. Fundraising Incentives 

 
If the Head Football Coach can assist the Director of Athletics in 
fundraising a minimum of Five Hundred Thousand Dollars ($500,000.00) 
Head Football Coach will receive 5% of the total amount raised which can 
be used as additional income for himself or for any other purpose within the 
discretion of the Head Football Coach.  

 
b. In order for Head Football Coach to receive the above-mentioned performance 

incentives, Football Team shall meet all NCAA APR standards (including 
maintaining at least a 930 APR) and Football Team shall be eligible for post-season 
play. 
 

c. Within forty-five (45) days of the last contest, Head Football Coach shall be 
provided an annual report of all performance incentives attained and private 
donations collected by the Foundation designated for football.  All incentive 
payments earned and salary supplements shall be paid not later than sixty (60) days 
following the last contest of the season, including post-season play. 

 
VI. Compliance with NCAA, Conference and University Rules 

 
a. Head Football Coach shall be responsible for being knowledgeable of and in 

compliance with all rules and regulations of the NCAA, SWAC and SUBR. If Head 
Football Coach or the Football Program is found to be in violation of NCAA 
regulations, Head Football Coach shall be subject to disciplinary action or 
termination for cause as defined below.  Head Football Coach may be suspended 
for a period of time, without pay, if Head Football Coach is found to be personally 
guilty of deliberate and serious violations of NCAA, SWAC or SUBR regulations. 

 
b. Head Football Coach shall abide by state and federal laws, including but not limited 

to laws regarding Power-Based Violence and Title IX, the State of Louisiana Code 
of Governmental Ethics, and the policies and regulations of Southern University 
System. 

 
VII. Coaching Staff 

 
Head Football Coach shall have the authority to recommend an offer of employment to 
Assistant Coaches subject to approval by the Athletic Director and President-Chancellor. 
 

VIII. Termination  
 
a. For Cause- The Board shall have the right to terminate this agreement for cause 

prior to its expiration, and such right shall exist notwithstanding any rights available 



Head Football Coach Employment Contract 
Eric Dooley 

Page 5 

under Section VI hereof, and in addition to the examples listed in SUBR Personnel 
Handbook, the termination for cause shall include but not be limited to any one or 
more of the following: 

 
i. Negligent or inattention by Head Football Coach of the standards, duties, or 

responsibilities expected by Southern University System employees, after 
written notice thereof has been given to Head Football Coach by Athletic 
Director and Head Football Coach has continued such neglect or inattention 
during a subsequent period for not less than thirty (30) days; 
 

ii. Material, intentional, or reckless breach or violation by Head Football 
Coach of the agreement, including without limitation governing athletic 
rules and Southern University System rules;  

 
iii. Conviction of Head Football Coach of any criminal violation (does not 

include minor traffic offenses or non-criminal offenses);   
 

iv. Fraud or dishonesty of Head Football Coach in the performance of his duties 
or responsibilities hereunder;  

 
v. Actively engaging in any conduct or committing any act that brings SUBR, 

Southern University System and Head Football Coach into public disrepute, 
contempt, embarrassment, scandal or ridicule and that negatively impacts 
the reputation or the high moral or ethical standards of the Southern 
University System; 

 
vi. Conduct of Head Football Coach constituting a major violation or a pattern 

of conduct that may constitute or lead to a major violation, of any NCAA 
or other governing athletic association rule or Southern University System 
interpretation thereof, that may, in the reasonable and good faith judgment 
of the Southern University System negatively and significantly impact and 
reflect adversely upon the Southern University System or its athletic 
programs; 
 

vii. Any NCAA or SWAC rules violation by the football program that           
results or could result in the University being placed on probation by the 
NCAA or the SWAC; 

 
viii. Conduct by members of Head Football Coach’s coaching or football staff 

or others under his supervision or subject to his control or authority that may 
constitute a major violation or a pattern of conduct that may constitute or 
lead to a major violation of any NCAA or other governing athletic rule or 
Southern University System interpretation thereof of which Head Football 
Coach had knowledge and failed to act reasonably to prevent, limit or 
mitigate, which may, in the reasonable and good faith judgment of the 



Head Football Coach Employment Contract 
Eric Dooley 

Page 6 

Southern University System negatively and significantly impact and reflect 
adversely upon SUBR or its athletic program; 
 

ix. Conduct that the Athletic Director, President-Chancellor and/or Board 
agree is not the best interest of SUBR and Southern University System and 
such conduct would be detrimental to the SUBR and Southern University 
System; or 
 

x. Failure of the football program to meet the academic benchmarks 
established by the NCAA (including Academic Progress Rate (APR) 
benchmarks) which results in penalties or sanctions being imposed by the 
NCAA or other athletic governing authority. 

 
In the event this Agreement is terminated for cause in accordance with the provisions of 
Section VIII hereof, then effective as of the termination date, Head Football Coach shall 
not be entitled to receive any further payments of base salary, and any other compensation 
or benefits otherwise payable under Section III hereof, except Head Football Coach will 
be entitled to continue such life or health insurance benefits at Head Football Coach’s 
expense as required by law; and subject to any deductions.  Head Football Coach will be 
paid any earned outstanding payments owed by SUBR as of the effective termination date 
pursuant to the terms of the Agreement.  Head Football Coach will be given notice of the 
cause and an opportunity to appeal the termination before the Board’s Athletic Committee.  
The Athletic Committee will make a recommendation to Board on whether to uphold or 
rescind the termination of the Head Football Coach. 
 
b. Without Cause- In the event this agreement is terminated without cause, Head 

Football Coach and SUBR will be required to provide thirty (30) days written notice 
to the other party.  However, Head Football Coach may not terminate this 
agreement thirty (30) days prior to the first scheduled football game of the football 
season through the date of the last game of the football season.  In the event the 
agreement is terminated without cause, Head Football Coach will be paid any 
earned outstanding payments owed by SUBR as of the effective termination date 
pursuant to the terms of the agreement.  The parties agree that if this agreement is 
terminated without cause, Head Football Coach may be given a hearing at the sole 
discretion of the Board’s Athletic Committee.  If SUBR terminates the agreement 
without cause, as permitted by Section VIII hereof, SUBR shall pay, and Head 
Football Coach agrees to accept as liquidated damages, an amount equal to the sum 
of the annual base salary for the remaining term of the agreement.  If Head Football 
Coach terminates this agreement, the Head Football Coach will not be entitled to 
liquidated damages. 

 
IX. Miscellaneous 
 
a. This agreement may be amended at any time only by a written instrument duly 

signed by SUBR through its designated representative and Head Football Coach.  
All amendments must be in writing. 



Head Football Coach Employment Contract 
Eric Dooley 

Page 7 

 
b. The agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of 

the State of Louisiana. 
 
c. Head Football Coach’s rights and interests under this Agreement may not be 

assigned, pledged or encumbered by Head Football Coach. 
 
d. The agreement constitutes the full and complete understanding and agreement of 

the parties with respect to the employment of Head Football Coach by SUBR and 
supersedes all prior understandings and agreements, oral and written, regarding 
Head Football Coach’s employment by SUBR. 

 
e. Head Football Coach acknowledges that he has read and understands the foregoing 

provisions are reasonable and enforceable, and Head Football Coach agrees to 
abide by this agreement and the terms and conditions set forth herein. 

 
f. All notices, requests, demands and other communication hereunder may be given 

by personal delivery, delivery via expedited delivery or mail service such as Federal 
Express and United States mail with first class postage prepaid.  Notices shall be 
sent to the names below: 

 
If to Head Football Coach   If to SU-Baton Rouge 
Eric Dooley     Roman Banks 
Head Football Coach    Athletic Director  

@yahoo.com   Southern University – Baton Rouge 
      F. G. Clark Activity Center 
      Harding Boulevard 
      Baton Rouge, LA  70813  
           
With copies to:     With copies to: 
Dooley’s address on file with HR  General Counsel 
       Office of President 
       J. S. Clark Administration Bldg. 
       4th Floor 
       Baton Rouge, LA 70813 
 
g. The invalidity or enforceability of any provision of this agreement has no effect on 

the validity or enforceability of any other provisions. 
 



Head Football Coach Employment Contract 
Eric Dooley 

Page 8 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this agreement, or caused this 

agreement to be executed on the date shown below. 
 
 
        ________________________                           
Head Football Coach,      Date 
Eric Dooley 
 
 
                                                    ________________________ 
Athletic Director,       Date 
Roman Banks 
 
 
        ________________________ 
System President-Chancellor,     Date      
Dr. Ray L. Belton 
 
 
        ________________________ 
System Board Chairman,      Date 
Domoine D. Rutledge 
 
 
 
 
 
  

 
 














































































































































































































	Final November 2021 BOS Meeting Mintes.pdf
	PRESENT
	ABSENT
	AGENDA ITEM 6: ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA
	AGENDA ITEM 7: PUBLIC COMMENTS
	None
	AGENDA ITEM 8: GREETINGS FROM DR. RICK GALLOT, PRESIDENT OF GRAMBLING STATE UNIVERSITY
	AGENDA ITEM 8: GREETINGS FROM DR. RICK GALLOT, PRESIDENT OF GRAMBLING STATE UNIVERSITY
	Dr. Gallot thanked Dr. Belton and the Board of Supervisors for the invite.  He mentioned he was accompanied by members of his leadership team.  He asked them to stand to be recognized.  Dr. Belton and Chairman Rutledge thanked Dr. Gallot for attending...
	AGENDA ITEM 9: SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS
	AGENDA ITEM 10: ACTION ITEMS
	Motion was made by Dr. Rani Whitfield and second by Mr. John Barthelemy that Action Item 10A be approved
	Motion was approved.




